
 
MINUTES 

CITY OF NORCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 

REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 9, 2014 

   

 
CALL TO ORDER:   7:00 PM     
 
ROLL CALL: Chair Hedges, Vice Chair Leonard, Commission Members Hoffman and 
Rigler; Member Jaffarian, absent. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director King, Senior Planner Robles, City Clerk Link and 
Deputy City Clerk Germain 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Vice Chair Leonard 
 
INTRODUCTION AND OATH OF OFFICE:  

New Planning Commission Member John D. Rigler 
City Clerk Link provided the Oath of Office for new Commission Member John Rigler for 
his service to the Planning Commission.  
 
1. ELECTION OF NEW CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR: 
Chair Hedges asked for postponement of the reseating of Chair and Vice Chair until Member 
Jaffarian is present. 
 
2. APPEAL NOTICE: Read by Director King 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS: NONE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 Minutes of Regular Meeting on June 11, 2014 
Recommended Action: Approval (Deputy City Clerk)  

M/S Leonard/Hoffman to approve the regular meeting minutes of June 11, 2014, as written. 
AYES:  Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Rigler   Motion Passed 
ABSENT: Jaffarian 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Conditional Use Permit 2014-14 (Gougeon/Andresen): A request for approval to 

allow an accessory building consisting of a 4,000 square-foot Recreational Vehicle 
(RV), personal vehicles and tool storage building at 1320 Hillkirk Avenue located 
within the A-1-20 Zone. Recommended Action: Continue project to August 13, 
2014 (Senior Planner) 

 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
July 9, 2014 
 
 
Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. She noted 
that the Architectural Review Board provided comments pertaining to the building’s size, adding 
that staff shares the same concern. Senior Planner Robles stated that this was discussed with 
the applicant, and that the applicant is willing to reduce the size with direction from the 
Commission. She added that as proposed the project does meet all requirements. Staff 
recommends a continuation to provide time for the applicant to make corrections/changes as 
directed by the Commission. 
 
Commission Members stated that they were not ready to review or comment on this project as 
the agenda was noted as being continued. 
 
Chair Hedges asked if the applicant wished to speak at this time.  
 
Bethanie Andresen and Steven Gougeon, applicants, stated that they were hoping for feedback 
from the Commission. Mr. Gougeon explained the usage of the accessory building, and noted 
that its location would be out of site, screened from street view and explained that the property 
is at the end of a private street butting against commercial buildings. 
 
In response to Commission Member Hoffman, Ms. Andresen stated that with the addition of this 
building only 17% of the property would be covered, which is well under the maximum coverage 
allowed of 40%.  
  
Planning Director King stated that based on the Commission’s concerns with the size of the 
building, the public hearing will be continued to August 13, 2014, to provide the applicant an 
opportunity to meet with staff to review the concerns.  
 

B. Conditional Use Permit 2014-06 (Duncan): A request for approval to allow an 
accessory building consisting of a 1,050 square-foot barn at 1456 Foxtrotter Road 
located in the Norco Ridge Ranch Specific Plan (NRRSP). Recommended Action: 
Continue to August 13, 2014 (Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles stated that staff was unable to complete its report as the applicant had 
not provided all of the information needed; as such this public hearing is being continued to 
August 13, 2014.  
 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

 
A. Site Plan 2014-13 (Williamson): A request for approval to allow an accessory 

building consisting of a 464 square-foot detached patio cover at 3449 Vandermolen 
Drive located within the Norco Ridge Ranch Specific Plan. Recommended Action: 
Approval (Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. She stated 
that the project meets all requirements. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Don Williamson, applicant, answered a few questions from the Commission Members, 
regarding access to the PAKA, and the slope that seems to be apparent on the exhibit provided. 
 
In response to Chair Hedges, Senior Planner Robles stated she has inspected the property and 
confirmed that the area in question is mostly flat and accessible.  
 
M/S Hoffman/Leonard to adopt Resolution 2014-38, to approve Site Plan 2014-13, to allow an 
accessory building consisting of a 464 square-foot detached patio cover at 3449 Vandermolen 
Drive. 
AYES:  Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Rigler   Motion Passed 
ABSENT: Jaffarian 
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
July 9, 2014 
 
 
7. DISCUSSIONS: 
 

A. Zone Code Amendment 2014-04 (City): Amending Chapter 18.13 “A-1 Zone, 
Agricultural Low Density” in the Norco Municipal Code to add Bed and Breakfast as a 
conditionally-permitted use. Recommended Action: Discuss and Provide 
Direction (Planning Director) 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He noted 
that this amendment is a recommendation by the Economic Development Advisory Council and 
City Council. Its primary intent is to entice visitors to Norco, usage of City facilities and build up 
tourism. He stated that currently there are no locations in Norco offering boarding and 
accommodations for horses and owners when attending a local event. Director King mentioned 
that Bed and Breakfast accommodations had previously been considered for the C-4 Zone but 
was not adopted at the time; only hotels/motels were added to the code. He noted that there are 
no industry standards for what a Bed and Breakfast might be or include; as such, regulations 
need to be considered, lot size requirements, number of horses per guests, etc.  
 
Vice Chair Leonard asked if a detached building would be permissible on a residential lot for this 
type of establishment, and if the Fire Department had provided any input. In response, Director 
King stated that allowing a detached building is an option to be considered, and as this is a new 
discussion, it has not been presented to the Fire Department yet. Vice Chair Leonard stated that 
based on lot size, the number of allowed animal units should remain as set by code, adding that 
half-acre lots would be too small to accommodate guest parking, trailer parking and additional 
horses. He suggested that a minimum one-acre lot should apply. He indicated that this is a good 
idea, bringing visitors into Norco and staying with their horses, but noted concerns with parking 
and disturbance in residential neighborhoods.  
 
Member Rigler concurred with Vice Chair Leonard, stating that he has experienced Bed and 
Breakfast services and had encountered parking issues. He stated that this type of business 
would help promote Norco’s way of life, especially during special events. Member Rigler 
suggested limiting the number of rooms, requiring a minimum lot size of one-acre and consider 
parking allowances.  
  
Member Hoffman stated that he doesn’t like Bed and Breakfast establishments, noting that 
there are too many homes in the A-1 Zone and doesn’t want a commercial business next door. 
He added that there are four hotels in town now and doesn’t want to take business away from 
them; he further stated that the City does not need B and Bs. Member Hoffman further stated 
other concerns on issues such as impact on the City’s trails, ADA concerns, and most likely 
involvement of the Health Department.  
 
Chair Hedges stated some of the same concerns, adding that this should only be allowed in the 
C-4 Zone and possibly allow the business owner to reside on property.   
 
Vice Chair Leonard noted additional concerns with how home-business rules will be regulated, 
concerned with the Fire Department not being involved, impact on neighborhoods, among other 
issues.  
 
Director King suggested that he draft an ordinance, noting all of the Commission’s concerns, 
including that it be allowed only in the C-4 Zone, distribute to all city departments for input and 
bring back as a Zone Amendment for their recommendation.  
 

B. Building Permit Process: Provide Input as Needed. (Planning Director) 
Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He noted 
that the City Council has asked for Planning Commission to review the building permit process, 
for suggestion on how it could be improved.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
July 9, 2014 
 
 
Discussions ensued. Commission Members questioned the different requirements on fire 
sprinkler systems between the County and City. 
 
Member Hoffman stated that once a plan has been approved, changes should not be required 
of the applicant and suggested that a variance is written to protect the applicant when it’s a City 
error. 
 
Vice Chair Leonard suggested that the Building and Safety Department be its own entity, not be 
part of the Public Works Department. He noted that the Planning Commission is not in place to 
fix the Building Department issues, but agreed that the process needs to be streamlined. He 
added that the City of Norco takes too long to process plan inspections, comparing other cities 
that take 10-days as opposed to one month.   
 
Chair Hedges agreed on restructuring the building permit process, but has no problem with the 
different rules between the County and the City, as the City is unique and requires its own 
standards.  
 
8. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES:     Received and Filed 

 
 City Council Special Meeting of May 21, 2014 
 City Council Special Meeting of June 4, 2014 
 City Council Regular Meeting of June 4, 2014 

 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION:  
 

A. Oral Reports from Various Committees: 
 Chair Hedges shared discussion issues from the recent Infrastructure Ad-Hoc 

Committee meeting. She stated that the Committee received lots of good input from all 
its Members and attendees.  

 
B. Request for Items on Future Agenda (within the purview of the Commission):  

 Director King noted that a staff report on the accessory building process and approvals 
will be presented at the next regular meeting for discussions as previously requested.  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Hedges adjourned the meeting at 8:30 PM 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Steve King, Secretary 
Planning Commission 
 
 
/di 


